ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 24, 2016

9:02 a.m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns
Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MGQuire
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 175
"An Act establishing Novenber 1 as Mlitary Famly Day."

- MOVED HB 175 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 154
"An Act relating to special registration plates comrenorating
t he Bl ood Bank of Al aska."

- MOVED CSSB 154( STA) OUT OF COMM TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 171

"An  Act relating to the duties of the Departnment of
Adm nistration; relating to paynent of judgnent against the
state; relating to pre-audit of clains; relating to travel costs
and travel outside the state; repealing authorization and
adm nistration of the Departnment of Admnistration to nmake
advances to the University of Alaska; and repealing the United
St at es savi ngs bond purchase plan.™

- HEARD & HELD
SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 16
Uging the Governor to designate a location for a special

session of the Twenty-Ninth Al aska State Legislature, if called
after adjournment of the First Regular Session of the Twenty-

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2016



Ninth Alaska State Legislature, that is in a comunity on the
state's road system

- MOVED CSSCR 16( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 175

SHORT TI TLE. ESTABLI SH M LI TARY FAM LY DAY
SPONSOR(s): LYNN

04/ 01/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 01/ 15 (H) STA

01/ 21/ 16 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 21/ 16 (H) Moved HB 175 Qut of Committee

01/ 21/ 16 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 22/ 16 (H STA RPT 7DP

01/ 22/ 16 (H) DP; TALERI CO STUTES, VAZQUEZ,
GRUENBERG, KREI SS- TOMKI NS, LYNN, KELLER

01/ 25/ 16 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

01/ 25/ 16 (H) VERSI ON: HB 175

01/ 27/ 16 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 27/ 16 (S) STA

03/ 24/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 154

SHORT TI TLE: BLOOD BANK OF ALASKA LI CENSE PLATES
SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS BY REQUEST

01/ 21/ 16 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 16 (S) STA, FIN
03/ 24/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 171
SHORT TITLE: DOA PAYMENTS; REPEAL OTHER DOA DUTI ES
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

02/ 05/ 16 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 05/ 16 (S) STA, FIN

02/ 18/ 16 (S) STA AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 18/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 18/ 16 (S) M NUTE( STA)

BILL: SCR 16

SHORT TITLE: SPECI AL SESSI ON TO BE HELD ON ROAD SYSTEM
SPONSOR(s): STOLTZE

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2016



04/ 18/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 18/ 15 (S) STA

03/ 15/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM FAHRENKAMP 203
03/ 15/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 15/ 16 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 24/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

ESTER M ELKE, St aff

Representative Bob Lynn

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of HB 175.

LAURI E HUMMEL, Comm ssi oner

Department of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

VERDI E BOVEN, Director

Ofice of Veterans' Affairs

Al aska Departnent of MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding HB 175.

BRANDON BREFCZYNSKI , St af f

Senator Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Explained the commttee substitute for
154.

TI' M BENI NTENDI, Secretary

Board of Directors

Bl ood Bank of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 154.

ROBERT SCANLON, Chief Executive Oficer

Bl ood Bank of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 154.

CHRI S MELLO Menber
Board of Directors
Bl ood Bank of Al aska

SB

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2016



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 154.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Al aska Departnment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered adm nistrative questions regarding
SB 154.

VERDI E BOVXEN, Director

Ofice of Veterans' Affairs

Al aska Departnent of MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 154.

DANI EL GEORGE, St aff

Senator Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION STATEMENT: Provided an overview of the committee
substitutes for SB 171 and SCR 16.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:02: 48 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Coghill, Huggins, and Chair
Stoltze

HB 175- ESTABLI SH M LI TARY FAM LY DAY

9: 03: 55 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of HB 175.

9:04: 01 AM

ESTER MELKE, Staff, Representative Bob Lynn, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, read the sponsor statenent for HB
175 as fol | ows:

Mlitary famlies are the folks back honme who help
keep our warriors at peak effectiveness, be it
stateside duty or conmbat duty. Wrrying about your
kid's homework, getting the bills paid on tine, or

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2016



worrying about anything at all back hone is not
sonething that is safe to do when the eneny is
attenpting to kill you.

The mlitary famly is major source of norale and the
foundati on of what’'s good about our mlitary. The day
soneone joins the mlitary is the day that the famly
virtually joins the mlitary too. Wen we support the
mlitary famly, we support the mlitary nenber.

Many service nmenbers transfer from one place to
anot her about every two years, this neans the famly
al so noves to sonewhere el se. The kids change school s,
maybe in their senior year; churches are changed; the
spouse may have to give up their job; and of course
the curtains don't fit the new place. The spouse, sone
say, has the toughest job in our mlitary.

The mlitary deserves having a day set aside to honor
their mlitary famlies and to recognize a nmjor
source of their norale and strength. HB 175
establishes "Mlitary Famly Day" to honor and support
famlies of our service men and wonen in Al aska every
year on Novenber 1st. Nat i onal | y, Novenber is
designated as National Mlitary Famly Mnth. The
President of the United States typically nakes an
annual announcenment to inform the public about this
month. We thought it was fitting to have our Al askan
Mlitary Family Day to coincide with the begi nning of
t he nationally designated nonth.

9:06: 33 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL noted that Novenber 1 was "All Saints' Day" and
asked if there was any correl ation.

M5. M ELKE answer ed no.

SENATOR COGHILL remarked that mlitary famlies quite often
coul d be nom nated for sainthood.

CHAIR STOLTZE commented that the commttee nenbers represent
communities that support veterans and their famlies. He noted
that two committee nmenbers were veterans and guessed that the
bill would have a |l ot of receptivity.

SENATOR HUGGE NS commented that his wfe asked to thank
Representative Lynn for his thought and consideration put into

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2016



the bill. He noted that his wife was the nother of three
children that were in the mlitary.

9:09: 26 AM

COW SSI ONER LAURIE HUMMVEL, Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans'
Affairs (DWA), Anchorage, Al aska, testified in support of HB
175. She stated that while she was always prepared to publically
acknow edge the patriotism dedication, and skill of Alaska's
mlitary men and wonen, she was especially pleased to focus on
the enornmous contributions nade by the mlitary famlies that
the public rarely sees. She revealed that she understood the
i nportance of service nmenbers' fanmlies because her father was
in the mlitary for 24 years and noted that she, as well as her
spouse, have been deployed soldiers as well. She renmarked that
the spouse left behind has the harder job with twice the work,
all the worry, nore time to think about it, and none of the
credit.

He said there were a lot of famlies whose service nenbers'
deploynents resulted in life-altering injuries and the famly

menbers' lives were just as effected as those of the service
menbers. She added that when a nenber of the mlitary loses his
or her life in service, the "Gold Star" famlies left behind

find a way to nove forward; but really, they never fully heal.

She disclosed that 74,000 veterans call Al aska honme and the
state has the highest veterans per capita in the country. She
said Al aska was |ucky to keep the experience of its veterans and
fortunate that their famlies follow suit. She set forth that
Al aska's veterans and their famlies deserve the state's
unwavering support. She asserted that Alaska's veteran success
was not sustained by what they had al ready done, but what nore
they would provide. She set forth that HB 175 shows the state's
appreciation, especially to the mlitary famlies, the backbone
of the mlitary. She said she agreed with Senator Coghill that
recognizing mlitary famlies on Al Sai nt s’ Day was
appropri at e.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked M. Bowen if he had attended all of the
Al aska Vet erans Advisory Council (AVAC) neetings.

9:14: 15 AM

VERDIE BOWEN, Director, Ofice of Veterans' Affairs, Al aska
Department of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs, Anchorage, Al aska,
answer ed yes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE asked if AVAC had any discussions regarding HB
175.

MR. BOVEN answer ed no.

9:16: 16 AM
At ease.

9:17: 05 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE called the commttee back to order. He asked
Senator Huggins, the senior veteran commttee nenber, to make a
notion on HB 175.

9:17: 34 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to report HB 175, [29-LS0814\A], from
conmmttee wth individual recomendations and attached zero
fiscal note.

9:17:45 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced that hearing no objection, HB 175 noves
fromcommttee.

9:17: 50 AM
At ease.

SB 154- BLOOD BANK OF ALASKA LI CENSE PLATES

9:18:33 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE called the commttee back to order. He announced
the consideration of SB 154 and asked for a notion to adopt the
commttee substitute (CS)

9:19: 08 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to adopt the proposed CS for SB 154,
version H, as the working docunent.

CHAI R STOLTZE obj ected for di scussion purposes.

9:19:27 AM

BRANDON BREFCZYNSKI, Staff, Senator Stoltze, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, explained that the CS for SB 154
was a result of an oversight. He specified that on page 2, |ine
1, the added ||anguage would allow the Departnent of
Adm nistration to separately account and appropriate funds for
t he Bl ood Bank of Al aska |license plate.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE renoved his objection and announced that the CS
was before the conmittee. He set forth that the commttee would
hear public testinony. He asked the M. Benintendi be the first
to address the committee. He noted that M. Benintendi was the
Al askan citizen who brought the legislation forward and the
State Affairs Commttee noted the bill as being sponsored "by
request” in order to reflect that sponsorship was on behal f of
the Blood Bank of Alaska and those who supported their
activities.

9:20:48 AM

TIM BENI NTENDI, Secretary, Board of Directors, Blood Bank of
Al aska, Anchorage, Alaska, testified in support of SB 154. He
thanked the commttee and the Legislature for supporting the
grant funding to help construct the new Blood Bank of Al aska
facility. He said SB 154 authorizes the issuance of the Bl ood
Bank of Alaska license plate and its extra revenue; but nore
importantly, the license plates would provide extra pronotional
opportunity and visibility for the Bl ood Bank of Al aska as well.

9:22:53 AM

ROBERT SCANLON, Chief Executive Oficer, Blood Bank of Al aska,
Anchorage, Al aska, testified in support of SB 154. He thanked
the Legislature for its generosity in supporting Al aska' s sole
bl ood supplier. He said without the Legislature' s assistance,
the project would not have been possi bl e.

9:23:41 AM

CHRIS MELLO, Menber, Board of Directors, Blood Bank of Al aska,
Anchorage, Al aska, testified in support of SB 154. He thanked
the Legislature for its generous support of the Blood Bank of
Al aska. He detailed that the Blood Bank of Alaska was a
501(c)(3) public charity with an all-A askan board and all-
Al askan outfit. He added that the Blood Bank of Al aska has over
30,000 donors statewide. He set forth that the license plate
woul d hel p the Bl ood Bank of Al aska as foll ows:

e Generates revenue.

e Allows anonynobus donors and recipients to |let everyone know
their support.

e Acts as a rem nder for people to donate.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the adm nistration had concerns with the
bill.

9:25:10 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2016



AMY ERI CKSON, Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW), Al aska
Department of Adm nistration, Anchorage, Alaska, replied that
the adm nistration had no concerns. She added that she was gl ad
that the committee was able to fix the oversight where the
license plate was not tied to a fund.

9:25:48 AM

VERDI E BOWEN, Director of Veteran Affairs, Anchorage, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 154. He revealed that he was a Bl ood
Bank of Al aska recipient due to an accident. He said the new
license plate would provide advertising and awareness for the
Bl ood Bank of Al aska.

CHAIR STOLTZE cl osed public testinony. He asked Ms. Erickson to

provide a brief narrative on the bill's $250 fiscal note. He
inquired if M. Erickson had any projected expectations judging
from past history on "cause" license plates.

9:28:33 AM

MS. ERI CKSON specified that DW would work with the Bl ood Bank
of Alaska to design the license plate that the conmm ssioner of
the Departnment of Admnistration would ultimtely have to
approve. She detailed that the plate would have a $200 design
fee. She noted that a previous "cause" plate exanple would be
for "breast cancer awareness.”

CHAI R STOLTZE added that "cause" plates would include "pronotion
of life" and the Second Anendnent.

M5. ERI CKSON answered yes. She said she could not forecast how
many plates would be sold, but remarked that the Blood Bank of
Al aska has a big following in the Anchorage area.

CHAIR STOLTZE opined that sone "cause" plates have a limted
pool and others were a |lot broader. He noted that the Pearl
Har bor survivors' plate was |limted, where the plate for the
Second Amendment has a | ot of fans.

9:30: 09 AM

M5. ERICKSON replied that only one license plate was issued to a
Pear| Harbor survivor. She noted that the "cause" plates did not
have a m ni mum order.

SENATOR HUGGA NS asked if DW would be able to accept $250 from a
collection to cover the $250 fiscal note.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2016



M5. ERICKSON replied that DW did not have a way of accepting
t he noney. She noted that committees had zeroed-out fiscal notes
in the past.

CHAIR STOLTZE concurred that the commttee could zero-out the
fiscal note. He noted that a bill like SB 154 tends to have
"extra cargo"” thrown on it. He stated that the Finance Conmittee
can decide whether to zero-out or anortize the fiscal note. He
said any conmmttee nenber could offer anmendnents or other
suggestions and Ms. Erickson would ninbly deal with whatever she
was deal t.

9:33: 58 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI noved Conceptual Amendnent 1.

CONCEPTUAL AMENDVENT 1

Expands the eligibility for veteran's designation on
an ID card or driver's license in the State of Al aska
in an effort to recognize Laotian veterans and the
Hmong Special Guerrilla Unit that fought in support of
American interests during the Vietnam era.

CHAI R STOLTZE obj ected for di scussion purposes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI set forth that he was offering the
anendnent on behalf of a nunber of constituent groups in his
district and all around Anchorage as well. He specified that the
amendnent woul d expand the eligibility for veterans' designation
on an ID card or driver's license in the State of Al aska in an
effort to recognize Laotian veterans and the Hnong Speci al
Guerrilla Unit that fought in support of Anerican interests
during the Vietnam era.

He revealed that tens of thousands of Hrong people were trained
covertly by the Central Intelligence Agency (CIA) to fight on
behalf of the United States. He quoted Edgar Buell, Cl A Senior
Aide that worked with the Hmong Special Querrilla Unit as
fol |l ows:

Every Hhong that died, that was an Anerican back hone
that didn't die, or one that was injured that wasn't
injured. Sonebody in nearly every Hmwng fanmly was
either fighting or died from fighting, they becane
refuges because we, the United States governnent,
encouraged them to fight for wus. | promsed them
nysel f, have no fear, we will take care of you

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2016



SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI remarked that the United States governnment
made prom ses to the Hrong. The Hnmong that emigrated to the U S.
have been fighting to get recognition as veterans on driver's
licenses. He detailed that the anendnent would have the
Department of Mlitary and Veteran's Affairs work wth the
Departnment of Admnistration and DW to find an alternative
proof of veteran's status because the Hmong did not have Defense
Departnent (DD) Form 214 (DD214). He said the anmended bill woul d
be a way of recognizing the Hmong's service on behalf of our
country. He noted that the Departnent of MIlitary and Veteran's
Affairs have expressed their support for the anendnent.

9:37: 05 AM

MR. BOWEN testified in support of Conceptual Amendnent 1. He
revealed that he had spent a lot of tinme wth the Hrong on
different issues of recognition, specifically with U S Senator
Mur kowski in allowing the Hnong to be interred in national
ceneteries. He detailed that under the command of GCeneral Vang
Pao, the Hmmng arny was a 30,000 man fighting force that
assisted dowed U. S. pilots in Laos. He presuned that Senator
Huggins fought with Hnong soldiers and he mght be able to
provide additional insight. He explained that the difference
between the Hmong and nost soldiers was the anount of people
that were in their army was probably equal to the anount of
people lost during the conflict. He asserted that anything that
the Legislature could do to recognize the Hmwng would be
out standi ng. He suggested that a program could be put together
that was simlar to the Alaska Territorial Guard where an
Al askan DD214 woul d recogni ze Hhong sol di ers.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the Veteran's Advisory Council had taken
a position on the issue.

MR. BOVWEN answered yes. He specified that the council had voted
in the past against adding the identification on the driver's
license, but the council had voted positive on a |icense plate.

9:39: 09 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE stated that he opposed the anmendnment, but offered
that the specific bill regarding Hnong recognition be heard in

commttee the foll ow ng week.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI t hanked Chair Stol tze and w t hdraw
Conceptual Amendnent 1.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 24, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE confirmed that Senator Welechowski's bill would
be heard the followi ng week. He said the bill would be properly
vetted and notice provided to veterans groups and the Hnong
comunity.

He asked if there were any other anmendnents.

SENATOR HUGGE NS stated that he had no anendnents and no further
comment .

CHAI R STOLTZE suggested that the conmmttee could neet the intent
and zero-out the fiscal note; however, the fiscal note would be
| eft as presented due to the limtations of accepting funds into
the state's treasury.

9:41: 32 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL noved to report CS for SB 154, [29-LS1127\H],
from commttee wth individual recomendations and attached
fiscal note.

9:41: 43 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that hearing no objection, CSSB 154( STA)
noves from comrittee.

SB 171- DOA PAYMENTS; REPEAL OTHER DOA DUTI ES

9:42: 02 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consideration of SB 171. He asked
for a notion to adopt the proposed conmttee substitute (CS).

9:42: 34 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS noved to adopt the CS for SB 171, [version 29-
GS2811\H], as the working docunent.

CHAI R STOLTZE obj ected for di scussion purposes.

9:43: 00 AM

DANI EL GEORGE, Staff, Senator Bill Stoltze, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, explained that the CS would place
the University of Alaska System and the Alaska Court System
under the state consolidated travel program He added that the
CS would put the state's "online checkbook” continuously online
and statutorily require public access for the purpose of
transparency in governnent spending. He added that the "online
checkbook™ would be required to list where the spending takes
pl ace and where the spending would take place from

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 24, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE conmented that state agencies have exhibited a
def ensi veness regarding the "online checkbook”™ and said "not
us." He stated that he welconed consideration that the Al aska
Rai |l road, Alaska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC), Al aska
| ndustrial Devel opnent and Export Authority (AIDEA), and the
Al aska Gasline Developnent Corporation (AGC) be included as

well. He noted that he appreciated that Senator W el echowski
cane forward with the "online checkbook," a relevant concept
that addressed refornms and cost savings. He added that

Representative Reinbold of fered suggestions as well.

CHAIR STOLTZE renoved his objection. He stated that wthout
obj ection, the CS was adopt ed.

9:46: 02 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced that SB 171 would be held in commttee.

SCR 16- SPECI AL SESSI ON TO BE HELD ON ROAD SYSTEM

9:46: 05 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of SCR 16.

9:46: 17 AM
At ease.

9:47.52 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE cal |l ed the neeting back to order.

9:48: 09 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to adopt the CS for SCR 16, version [29-
LS0906\ W, as the working docunent.

CHAI R STOLTZE obj ected for di scussion purposes.

9:48: 19 AM

DANI EL GEORGE, Staff, Senator Stoltze, Al aska State Legislature,
Juneau, Alaska, explained that the CS would update the
resolution to reflect any special session that mght be called
after adjournment of the second session of the 29th Legislature.
He sunmmarized that SCR 16 would sinply advise where a specia
sessi on woul d be hel d.

9:49: 04 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE renoved his objection and announced that hearing
no objection, the CS was adopt ed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- March 24, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE set forth that SCR 15 was very specific to date,
time, and circunstances. He affirnmed that SCR 15 was not a
| egislative nove. He affirnmed that he has been an advocate in
noving the capitol, but reiterated that the resolution was
specific to the circunstances regarding the building's
renmodeling for safety and seismc inprovenents. He stated the he
did not want the Legislature to interfere with the capitol’'s
construction conpany in conpleting the project on tine. He noted
that the capitol's renodel had a performance bond to finish the
project in excess of $5 million. He summarized that spring and
summer housi ng becones an issue in Juneau due to tourism the
speci al session would be in a location that was closer to where
nmost Al askans |ive, and neeting in Anchorage would be |ess
expensive for a very special circunstance.

9:55: 09 AM

SENATOR HUGGA NS remar ked that he seconded Chair Stoltze's words.
He expl ained that the governor intends to call a special session
to address his proposal to take the people's noney through
taxation. He stated that he would rather hear directly from his
nei ghbors and noted that his constituents have overwhel mngly
told him that they opposed an inconme tax. He asserted that he
adamantly opposed an incone tax based upon feedback and his
natural instincts. He summarized that the business of how nuch a
special session costs in Juneau versus Anchorage was al nost
irrelevant if the nunbers were close because the subject matter
pertained to taking people's noney.

SENATOR COGHILL stated that he supported the resolution. He said
speci al sessions were uni qgue because topics are narrowed down to
a few issues. He remarked that one of the general population's
hi dden taxes was the lack of accessibility to Juneau due to
expense. He said the general population really depends upon
sending their representatives, |obbyists, and groups to Juneau.
He asserted that allowng people to use the Southcentral road
systemto let their voices be heard during the special session
was inportant. He added that retrofitting the capitol was also a
pressure point for holding the special session in Juneau.

9:59: 25 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that in 2015, the senator from Juneau was
conpl ai ni ng about conm ssioners not being in Anchorage and noted
that he said, "Teleconferences are fine, but there is no
substitute for face-to-face.”" He said he was sure the senator
regrets his statenent, but he remarked that you cannot have
argunents both ways.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 24, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE stated that SCR 16 was not a conplicated measure,
but noted that the perception of a capitol nmove would
unnecessarily divide people philosophically and geographically.
He explained that the resolution was carefully crafted with a
| ot of consi derati on to specifically addr ess speci al
ci rcumnst ances.

He admtted that 99.9 percent of his constituents would not
attend legislative proceedings because they are busy. He said
constituents expect |legislators to exercise their good judgenent
and reach out to them when there were inportant things.

He stated that his notives would be reassigned and assessed
because of his record. He asserted that SCR 16 was a vehicle
specific to circunstances for the two |egislative bodies to cone
together and deliberate what was in the best interest of the
treasury and the people of Al aska.

10: 03: 19 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS nmoved to report the CS for SCR 16(STA), [29-
LS0906\W, from commttee [with individual recommendations and
attached fiscal note].

10: 03: 31 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced that seeing no objection, CSSIJR 16(STA)
noves from comittee.

10: 04: 55 AM

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Commttee at
10: 04 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 24, 2016



